
Town of Bayfield 
Planning Commission Minutes 

September 8, 2015 
1199 Bayfield Parkway, Bayfield, CO  81122 

 
Planning Commissioners Present: Joe Mozgai (Chairman), Dr. Rick Smith (Mayor), Kalon 
Porter (Vice Chairman), Kelly Polites, Matt Nyberg (trustee) and Tish Nelson. 
 
Staff Present:  Chris La May (Town Manager) 
 
Media Present:  Carol McWilliams, Pine River Times 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Joe Mozgai at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Roll Call:  6 members were present, Commissioner Isaac Fleener was absent. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of Minutes:  Minutes for July 14, 2015 will be presented at the next meeting 
 
Public Input:  None. 
 
Public Hearing:  
 
1. Minor Subdivision- Third Amendment, Sunrise Villas Subdivision 
Chairman Mozgai opened the public hearing.  
 
Town Manager Chris La May presented the staff report on the lot line adjustment request that is 
being processed as a Minor Subdivision under a short procedure.  The Commission is being 
asked to consider the preliminary plan and if in favor a recommendation would go to the Board 
to consider approval a final plat. La May continued to state that this is a minor lot adjustment and 
doesn’t require the full sketch plan, preliminary plan and final plat process that requires public 
hearing before the planning commission and Board of trustees on three different occasions. 
Town Manager Chris La May continued to state that lot 37 of Sunrise Villas Subdivision, it was 
amended March 2015 to make a minor a minor adjustment moving it 2 feet to the South, 
subsequent to that the applicant has decided it would be best to move the duplex to the back of  
the lot, in proximity to lot 38-2. The notice was published in the Pine River Times and notices 
were sent to all property owners within 200ft. Application was sent to referral agencies and the 
only one that commented was the Los Pinos Ditch Company as it relates to the ditch easement. 
The original version showed the building encroaching on the easement, but prior to that there 
was a document between the Los Pinos Ditch Company and Sunrise Villas executed that 
relocated the easement. The final version as shown has the correct location of the easement.  
Town Manager Chris La May continued to say that the application has met the requirements of 
the preliminary plan and staff is recommending that the Planning Commission recommend this 
to the Board of Trustees for approval. 



Town Manager Chris La May then turned it over the applicant. Chairman Mozgai asked the 
applicant to identify himself.  John Ralph got up to speak as the owner of Sunrise Villas, LLC. 
Mr. Ralph stated that when Pinnacle Surveying went to survey lot 37 he discovered that it was 
less than 15 feet from the neighboring building. This adjustment would not be an issue with the 
ditch easement and center the building, giving it better parking ability along with raising the 
foundation for better drainage. 
Chairman Mozgai asked if the commissioners had any questions, hearing none he asked for public 
comment.   
 
John Turgeon who resides at 312 Star Crossing got up to ask if the builder didn’t move the two 
feet, would he need to build the building higher in order to have the proper drainage. Moving the 
building back two feet and gaining more height would greatly obstruct my view. There are also 
irrigation issues as I have rights through PRID. Chairman Mozgai asked that Mr. Turgeon point 
out his lot on the map that was provided. Mr. Turgeon showed where his lot was and then explained 
his concerns.  
Harold Sheets who is the owner of Lot 38 and stated that 1 ½ feet isn’t going to change the views 
and stated that Sunrise Estates gave up the rights to the water in the ditch in 2006 or 2007. 
Chairman Mozgai asked for any other comment, Mr. Turgeon stated that part of what Mr. Sheets 
said was true, but that only some of the owners gave up rights to the water. John Ralph then got 
up and stated that Mr. Turgeon was right that some people still have the water rights but no the 
“delivery system” to carry the water and that there is a document between the Town and Sunrise 
Estates where Sunrise Estates gave up the rights to use the irrigation system but that Sunrise Villas 
which is within Sunrise Estates took over the rights and revamped the entire system. 
Commissioner Nyberg asked if it moved back and the ditch company doesn’t want any auxiliary 
structures built on the easement such as decks, patio will that still be upheld. John Ralph 
commented that yes he would comply with that request. 
Chairman Mozgai then asked for any other questions from the board or comments from the public, 
hearing none he closed the public comment. 
 
Action Agenda 1. Consideration of Second Amendment, Sunrise Villas Subdivision- Lot Line 
Adjustment Lot 37-1 & 37-2 
 
Mayor Smith commented that he would like to see a plat with the proper easement dedication or 
vacation. Mayor Smith recalls that the ditch was piped in agreement with the ditch company and 
that property owners were paid and if they chose to keep the water rights it would be with PRID 
and the ditch right would need to have an agreement with a ditch company to carry the water along 
with an easement. Mayor Smith continued to say that he himself would follow the staff 
recommendation as there is nothing from keeping him to do so. 
Chairman Mozgai asked the board if they want to hold off until a new plat could be drawn up and 
make a decision at the next meeting. 
Town Manager Chris La May suggested the board move forward with the staff recommendation 
and that if there is an easement it needs to be demonstrated on the plat.  
 
 
 



Mayor Smith made a motion to accept staff recommendation and recommend approval of the 
preliminary Plat of the Second Amendment of Sunrise Villas Subdivision Lot Line Adjustment of 
Lots 37-1 and 37-2 to the Board of Trustees with the following conditions: 
1) Final Plat include appropriate Certificates of Approval in accordance with the 
Land Use Code. 
2) Final Plat remove common area designation under lots. 
Vice Chairman Porter Seconded the motion. Chairman Mozgai asked for any other comment, 
Mayor Smith commented that he would like to see a plat showing the ditch easement presented to 
staff before this is brought to the Town Board for approval. 
 
Chairman Mozgai asked for a roll call, all voted in favor; motion passed unanimously. 
 
Town Manager Chris La May stated that Chief Evans was present for a Downtown Assessment 
meeting and  would like to give his presentation regarding a proposed use of the primary school 
gym as a new fire station and community center. Chief Evans then gave a power point 
presention. 
 
Action Agenda 2. Discussion/possible action –Vacation Rentals 
 
Chairman Mozgai asked staff to give a report. Town Manager Chris La May stated that there has 
been some interest in a vacation rental in the Town Center zoning district for a single lodging 
unit within a residential home, it was discovered that in accordance with the building code there 
were some issues meeting the fire separation requirements. La May continued to say that staff 
looked at how other communities handled Vacation rentals and found that other communities 
elected to use the International Residential Code for Code compliance for Vacation Rentals. The 
Town Board thought it would need to be reviewed and have an ordinance for this use with some 
minimum life safety measures. The Board has asked the planning commission to come up with 
the ordinance that would allow for this type of use under the land use code. Town Manager Chris 
La May has prepared some initial questions for the process, such as the zoning classifications do 
you want and where in the community do you want the use to be provided for. There is a positive 
side to the vacation rentals as we do not have any type of lodging in Bayfield. The Downtown 
assessment has identified this as a need to have in the Town of Bayfield. Town Manager Chris 
La May stated that he initially thought the vacation rentals would be in the Mill Street and Town 
Center zoning classifications and would avoid the single family zoning classifications but that it 
was up for discussion. 
Chairman Mozgai opened it up for discussion to the board. Town Manager Chris La May stated 
that he did a search to find any vacation rentals and didn’t find any, prior to the most recent 
request. Carol McWilliams commented that she had found there were four in the general area but 
none within the Town. Chairman Mozgai commented that Durango limited the use to certain 
areas, and questioned the fees involved and parking situations and asked if there an ordinance 
could be drafted and reviewed. Mayor Smith commented that he envisioned Mill Street and the 
“old part” of town to have the lodging. Chairman Mozgai asked that a draft Ordinance be 
presented at the next meeting for review. 
 
 
 



New/Unfinished Business 
Chairman Mozgai asked if there was any new or unfinished business, none was presented. 
 
Adjournment 
Chairman Mozgai asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Mayor Smith made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting.  Trustee Nyberg seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Approved: 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Mozgai, Chairman     Amy Witte, Administrative Assistant 
 

 
 


